
 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

SoWe Lead Board Meeting 
Agenda 

October 28, 2019 5:30 PM 

St. Joseph Church 

St. Francis Room  

418 St. Joseph St 

Lancaster, PA 17603 

(Audio from meetings are recorded to establish accurate meeting minutes) 

 

1. Public Comments:  Limited to items not on tonight’s agenda; limited to 3 minutes per 

speaker; limited to 2-3 people per topic 

 

2. Approval of September 23th, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

 

3. SoWe Director Report 

•  LHOP Extra Give Champions 

 

4. Committee Reports: 

• SoWe Talk, Communications (Nate Roach)  

• Manor St. Celebration Recap  

• SDoL Boundary Study (Bianca Cordova) 

• Housing Committee (Abby Tucker) 

• Neighborhood Connections (Emerson Sampaio) 

• Culliton Park Update, Parks and Public Realm (Rachel Eck) 

 

5. Discussion 

• Board Training/Retreat 

• Board Nominations Process and Timeline  

• SoWe Board Holiday Party 

 

6. Presentation: Water St. Bicycle and Pedestrian Blvd Presentation, City of Lancaster Karl 

Graybill 

 

7. SoWe Stories- Franklin and Marshall College 

 

8. Community Calendar 

• SoWe Talk: Neighborly Communication 10/30 6pm -Lancaster Rec.  

• Trick or Treat at Culliton Park 10/31 6-8pm  

• SoWe Landlord Snack and Chat: Lead 11/7 6pm St. Francis Room @ St. Joseph 
Church 

• LHOP Annual Breakfast 11/8 7:30 am Double Tree 2400 Willow Valley Pike  



 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

• SoWe Board Retreat Sat 2/1 9-3, Location TBD 
 

 Next Meeting:  Mon., November 25, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the St. Francis Room of St. Joseph’s 

Church 

 
 

SoWe Lead Board Meeting 
Minutes 

September 23, 2019 5:30 PM 

St. Joseph Church 

St. Francis Room  

418 St. Joseph St 

Lancaster, PA 17603 

(Audio from meetings are recorded to establish accurate meeting minutes) 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Willonda McCloud at 5:30 PM 

 

2. Board Members Present: Peter Barber, Susannah Bartlett, Bianca Cordova, Christina 

DiCola, Rachel Eck, Dick Hecker, Ole Hongvanthong, Marie King Linares, Carole 

Kirchner, Willonda McCloud, Stu Metzler, Martha Montes, Christina Ortega, Luis 

Ortega, Vicente Ramos, Nate Roach, Emerson Sampaio, Audrey Skilton, Jeff Tischer  

 

Board Members Absent: Vasthi Dominguez-Acosta, Gene Duncan, Martha Montes, 

Karen Schloer, Lt Glen Stoltzfus, Sgt. Dorsey Sumrall, Abby Tucker 

 

3. Approval of August 26th, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

Jeff Tischer made a motion to approve the August 26th, 2019 meeting minutes. Peter Barber 

seconded the motion. Unanimous approval 

 

4. SoWe Director Report 

Jake Thorsen presented the 2018-19 SoWe Financial Report. Dick Hecker made a motion to 

approve the financial report. Jeff Tischer seconded the motion. Unanimous approval 

5. Committee Reports: 

SoWe Talk, Communications (Nate Roach)  

SoWe Talk Neighborly Communication will be held 10/30 at Lancaster Rec and will  

focus of how to engage neighbors and conflict resolution techniques.  

 

Manor St Celebration- Group Photo, Economic Opportunity (Ole Hongvanthong)  



 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

Manor St Celebration will be held 10/4. There will be a dedication by the city to the Manor St 

Lights followed by a group photo at the Manor/ W. King intersection. Jake Thorsen will send 

flyer out to board and send out for St. Joseph Church Bulletin.  

 

SoWe Walk, Neighborhood Connections (Willonda McCloud) 

Neighborhood Connections committee reported on their resident engagement SoWe  

Walk.  

 

Water St. Bicycle/Pedestrian Blvd., Parks and Public Realm (Rachel Eck)  

Jake Thorsen reported on behalf Rachel Eck, Parks committee reps will be meeting with the 

Mayor and city staff to discuss Culliton Park Renovation and timeline. Parks Committee 

attended a city presentation for the Water St. Bike and Pedestrian Blvd. The city has been 

invited to the October SoWe Board to present on the idea. Rachel Eck has reached out to the city 

to see if the Culliton Park will be open during Trick-or-treat Night. Candy donations can be 

made to the SoWe office.  

 

6. Discussion 

Board Training/Retreat 

A doodle poll has been sent to the board to determine a meeting time for the next SoWe Board 

Retreat. The retreat will serve as a check-in and visioning session for the board. Committee 

chairs will work to develop issues or sticking points that they would like to brainstorm with the 

full board. The executive committee is working on planning the event and selecting a moderator.  

 

7. New Business 

Approval of Firework Repeal Letter  

The board reviewed the Fireworks repeal letter developed from discussions at the Safety 

Committee. Jeff Tischer made a motion to approve the letter. Dick Hecker seconded the motion. 

Unanimous approval 

8. Presentation: Juan Valencia Census 2020  

Juan Valencia made a presentation to the SoWe board about the 2020 Census roll-out and how 

SoWe and community members can get involved.  

 

9. Community Calendar 

Red Cross Sound the Alarm 10/4 10am- 1:00pm throughout SoWe 

Manor St Celebration 10/4 5:30 pm – Christ Lutheran Church meeting location 

SoWe Talk: Neighborly Communication 10/30 6pm -Lancaster Rec.  

Fall Fest 2019 10/12 12 pm Bright Side Opportunities Center  

 

10. Adjournment 

Marie King-Linares made a motion to adjourn. Jeff Tischer seconded the motion. Meeting was 
adjourned at 6:31 pm 

 



 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

Community Safety Committee 

October 8, 2019 1:30 PM 

LHOP/SoWe Office 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Minutes: 

Attendees: Wes Farmer, Adrian Garcia, Mary Glazier, Dick Hecker, Audrey Skilton, Dorsey 

Sumrall, Jake Thorsen, Leilany Tran  

 

1. Police Social Worker  

Leilany Tran introduced herself to the SoWe Safety Committee and described her role as the Police 

Social Workers. She stated that her clients will be referred to by police and she will work to develop 

relationship and provide resources.  

 

Dr. Glazier offered to work with the police department to develop an outcome matrix to 

understand how it is measuring success of the program. Committee agreed it would be supportive 

to the position to help Ms. Tran identify resources for clients.  

 

2. Police Brochure Review 

The committee reviewed the police brochure developed in Collaboration with SoWe. The 

committee was interested in simplifying the brochure and messaging. An idea of a postcard or 

refrigerator magnet was suggested. The committee agreed it should contain info on when to call 

the police. Dick Hecker agreed to talk to the graphic designer to develop a product. 

3. Fireworks Letter Update 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 5 of 9 

Dick Hecker stated that a letter supporting the repeal of 2017 firework legislation was developed 

and approved by the SoWe board. The letter will be sent in to SoWe’s PA State Representative and 

city of Lancaster reps will be cc’ed.  

 

4. Porch Light Program Report  

The committee reviewed the latest Porch Light Program report. The committee requested 

information on how many of the original properties missing porch lights that were identified at 

this point have been completed. The committee is also interested in focusing lights in areas that 

are dark such as alleys, and/or parking lots. The committee will review such requests on a case by 

case basis.   

 

5. Committee Discussion  

Dick Hecker stated that the SoWe Board will be reviewing committee progress at their board 

retreat in February. The committee is tasked with reviewing its goals and determining if there are 

additional support or resources that are needed to be successful. 

 

Jake will send out goals and metrics to the committee. 

 
Economic Opportunity Committee 

October 2, 2019 8:30 AM 

Two Dudes Painting 

750 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Minutes: 

Attendees: Christina DiCola, JJ Gammache, Jim Gerhart, Ole Hongvanthong, Jake Thorsen, 

Jeremy Young,  

  

1. Manor St. Celebration  

The committee discussed final details for the Manor St. Celebration on 10/4/2019.  

 

2. Christmas Decorations 

JJ Gammache and Peter Barber plan to pick up Christmas decorations from LEADS to get and 

idea of how to hang them on the Manor St. Lights. If feasible the committee will coordinate the 

installation.  

3. Continued Manor St Streetscape improvements 

The group discussed ideas to  continue street scape improvements for Manor St. Ideas included 

painting the street light poles at Manor and New Dorwart, installing new pedestrian cross walks, 

and installing flower planters.  

4. Creative Ideas for future meetings 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 6 of 9 

Ole Hongvanthong stated that the committee will look to change its meeting format and location. 

Mr. Hongvanthong suggested meeting in different business locations such as restaurants to 

introduce the committee to new businesses and new to form relationships.  

 

 
SoWe Education Committee 

October 10, 2019 
4:00 PM 

Price Elementary School 
615 Fairview Ave. Lancaster, PA 17603 

 
Attendees: Bianca Cordova, Florence Krane, Laurie Moir Natasha Ortiz, Jake Thorsen, and 
Melissa Wardwell 

 
1. VISTA update 

- Enrichment programs can not begin until, at the earliest, the beginning of the next 
semester (Millersville’s next semester) 
-In order to have enrichment on Mondays when the after school program is not in 
session, an administrator from the school needs to be present 

 

2. SDoL Boundary and Transportation Study 
-Five possible boundary shifts were discussed. Task force meetings are open to the 
public. This group and SoWe board are encouraged to visit 
https://my.thoughtexchange.com/scroll/973050440 to share your thoughts.  
-Most boundary shifts affect who will attend Price Elementary. Note: This will happen 
gradually and current students are grandfathered into their existing schools. 

 

Housing Committee 
October 17, 2019 

8:00 AM 

LHOP/SoWe Office 

417 Poplar Street Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Attendees:  Mike Breneman, Jaylan Martin, Luis Ortega, Victoria Schmidt. Jake Thorsen, 

Abby Tucker, Allyson Wells 

1. Landlord Engagement Snack and Chat –  

The Landlord Snack and Chat is scheduled for Nov. 7 at St. Joseph’s Church (St. Francis 

Room) from 6:00-7:00 pm. The topic will be Lead and Karen Bousquet has arranged for 

https://my.thoughtexchange.com/scroll/973050440


 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 7 of 9 

the City to make a presentation. Jake will send the invite to Karen to send out over her 

distribution list, and a Facebook event will also be created. 

 

2. 230 W. Strawberry St 

The property will likely go on the market in the next 60-90 days once certain 

improvements are made to meet Code. The committee discussed sending a “Coming 

Soon”-type announcement out several weeks in advance, with the notice to also plug 

LHOP’s first-time homebuyer course. The timing would hopefully allow someone to take 

the first steps to get into LHOP’s program and potentially be ready to make an offer 

when the property hits the market.  

 

3. Parking Pad Pilot Project 

Jake discussed the quote he got on a top-tier parking pad for 230 W. Strawberry Street 

and the committee discussed other contractors who may be able to bring the price-point 

down. Jaylan Martin described a driveway project he is doing, and agreed to take 

pictures of the progress so the committee could potentially develop website content that 

includes a how-to guide and other resources for residents that may want to put in a 

parking pad. 

 

4. Report on Neighborhood Data 

Jake is compiling a reports on some of the statistics in the neighborhood, including 

median home values and numbers of evictions. The committee had a good discussion 

about the findings, and provided some additional questions/topics for Jake to explore for 

his report to Wells Fargo. 

 

5. Items from the Committee 

The committee discussed the recent article posted online through the SoWe group about 

“The Price the Poor Pay for Gentrification.” Luis expressed concern about the message 

the article says about SlateHouse, which is affiliated with, but also implicitly about the 

SoWe organization. Jake gave some more background about the contact SoWe has had 

with the subjects of the article and with its author. The committee discussed whether 

SoWe had a policy for regulating content on the SoWe Facebook page. Mike and Jaylan 

offered to meet with the article author to discuss their experience as landlords and try to 

 

Parks and Public Realm Committee 

October 16, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Boys and Girls Club of Lancaster 

116 S. Water Street Lancaster, PA 17603 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 8 of 9 

 

Attendees: Susannah Bartlett, Rachel Eck Campbell, Jo Davis, Dan Siewert, and Jake Thorsen  

1. Culliton Park and Public Art 

Jo Davis talked about some new projects that the office of public art is working on: a mural on 

water street about immigrants and refugees that would be made in conjunction with Church 

World Service and a muralist from the Philadelphia Mural program, as well as community 

members during a paint-in at open streets 2020. This project is not a definite at this point, it is 

still in the idea stage.  

The park design still came in too high and so had to be re-bid. The new Culliton Park 

construction schedule is as follows: 

Bid Period, November 1-November 20 

Award Period, November 20-December 15 

Permitting and Mobilization, December 15-January 2 

Demolition Start, January 2, 2020 

Pool construction start, January 15 

Park construction start, February 15 

Pool construction completed, May 31 

Pool open for public use, June 15 

Park construction complete, November 20, 2020 

The bathroom near the baseball field will be retained, but will get some items fixed. Jake and 

Rachel will now have a monthly standing conference call with Matt Metzler, the interim Director 

of Public Works, to get updates directly from him. Rachel will check in with Jo each month to 

see if there's anything from public art that the committee needs to know.  

Jo also talked about artful intersections. 

2. Clean Up Crew 

The committee discussed the clean up crew and that it may be time to re-evaluate the position to 

include more neighborhood engagement, and maybe focus on having one, more highly paid 

individual instead of two. Jake also showed the committee the welcome kit he put together for 

trash can adoptees, which includes trash grabbers, trash bags, and other items to help adoptees 

get started. 

The committee discussed restarting efforts to get more pocket parks in the neighborhood. 

3. Trick or Treat 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 9 of 9 

Committee members discussed the annual Trick or Treat in the park event, which will be held 

October 31st from 6-8 pm. 

 

 

 


